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Farmville Plantation, located in the Piedmont farmland, includes a
small residential complex composed of two houses of different periods and
a number of outbuildings. The main structure is a two-story brick house, -
thrae bays wide and two deep, with a two-story entrance portico and a one-
story east rear wing. The smaller dwelling, set at right angles to ths main
strmcture and connected to it by a breezeway, is also two stories high,
thrso beys wide and two deep, and is constructed of brick coversd with

5LICCO.

The principal structure faces north. The front and rear of the »ain
block and the rear elevation of the wing are laid in Flemish bond, ar~ the
sides of both sections are laid in three-to-one common bond. The high
brick foundation projects slightly, and the water table is marked by =
single course of molded brick headers. The openings are surmounted t - handf
some flat arches. In each bay of the foundation is a six-pane casement
window, protected by a wooden grille. A low gable roof of standing-scam
tin covers the structure. The eavaes are boxed at the front and rear, with
a molded cornice. The gables are accented by a deep molded cornice which
is interrupted on each side by the stack of the exterior end chimney. Each
chimnay, constructed of brick laid in three-to-ons common bond, has single
concava zhoulders and a molded cap with a corbel cornice and a stuccc band.
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In the center bay at each level of the main facade is a doorway. The
nain entrance at the first level consists of a doubls door, esach lesaf con-
teining five flat pansls, surmounted by a transom with pointed-archesc
trazery. The entrance, framed by an ovolo-molded architrave and flat-
led soffit and reveals, has a flat arch and a granite sill. The sgcondr
v oentrance consists of a single flat-paneled door beneath a four-:sne
s owlthin an ovolo-molded architrave. A handsome Doric tetrasty:
cz portico protects both stories. The pediment, with a stuccoe:
tripoanum and molded cornice and frieze, is supported by stuccoed brich
piilars with plaster capitals. Brick steps lead to the center bay of the
s t-level porch, and a plain wood balustrade encloses both lower an-
neper perches. The portico rests on brick piers, with arched opening:s
batween the piers flanking the steps. The windows are identical throighout
the structure, each having six-over-six sash set in a simple molded archi-
trave, flanked by flat-paneled shutters and a sill eomposed of two rows of
brick headers stuccoed to simulate stone. The rear central entrance and
the entrance in the rear bay of the sast side are identical, each having a
cinglo {lat-panaled door in an ovolo-molded architrave.
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A one-story shed porch extends across the rear elevation. In the sast
bay of the porch is a brick wing contemporary with the main block, whilae
the west bays are open. The porch has stuccoed brick Doric columns, c¢on-
nected by a plain wood balustrade. Brick pillars form the porch founca-

tion.

Both stories of the principal structure of Farmville Plantation follow
a center hall plan one room deep, and the original simple, elegant trim is
intact throughout the house. The walls at both levels are plastered, and
ch room in the main block has a molded baseboard and a molded plaster
In the wing room a molded baseboard is present, but the woodicn

cornice.

NYdLSNI 335

P LD

SNO



Rniaie

RS UNITED §3A755 DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR lsmm
' h HATIONAL PARK SERVICE North Carolina,
HMATIOMAL DEGISTER GF HISTORIC PLACES CounTY

MV EMTORY - NOMINATION FORM fredell .
FOR NPS USE ONL".

ENTRY NUMBER

OATE

S

{Continuation Shcet)

cornico appears to be a replacement. With the exception of the hall at the
l=vel, each room is finished with a wainscot. The window openings
throu whout the structure have splayed reveals. Some of the doors and window
revaals on the first floor are flat-paneled, and the remaining reveals in the
house are plain. Wide molded architraves surround the window and door ocpenings
of both stories. The window architraves continue to the floor, framing a
paneled section of the wainscot, with the window sill a continuation of the
chair rail. Each of the interior doors has flat panels and is hung on butt

hinges.

A concentric plaster medallion adorns the hall ceiling. The handsomse
cpen-string stair (cited in Waterman's Early Architecturs of North Carolina)
spirals against the west wall of the hall to the second story and is ornsmented
with delicate tulip brackets which terminate in tendrils on the fascia of the
second flcor landing. The stair balustrade is composed of tall slendsr
balusters square in sectlon and an oval handrail. The stair appears tc bs
copied from Owen Biddle's 1810 Young Carpenter's Assistant, a type found in
many fine Piedmont housses.

The focus of the parlor is a tall, wide three-part Federal mantel.
Flanking Doric pilasters, each with a single vertical flat panel, suppc:it a
plain frieze with end blocks, a deeply molded cornice which breaks out over
the end blocks, and a narrow shelf. The dado in this room is flat-pancled,
with a molded chair rail. The dining room mantel is simpler, with a wi.is
moldad architrave surrounding the fireplace opening, a wide plain friezs and
a molded cornice with a narrow shelf. The wainscot here is identical <o that
in the parlor. The mantel in the wing is quite similar to the dining room
mantel but featurss a more complex surround. The wainscot in this room is
composed of raised panels and a molded chair rail. Both second-story mantels
are identical to ths mantel in the first-story wing. Each second-storyv room
has a horizontally sheathed wainscot and molded chair rail.

The ™11 basement, divided into two rooms by a brick partition wall, was

racently renovated. The west chimney contains a supporting arch at thi: level)

wiille the east chimney has a segmental-arched fireplace opening. The cuor
4 window openings in the basement have wooden arches and are set within
rmantal relieving arches.

moin {west) facade of the smaller structure faces tho east sic: of

rireinal regidenceo and is connected to it by a breezeway. This biasze-
slithough of recent construction, is perhaps rebuilt from an sarlic:

aangagsdaye.  The walls of this building are of brick laid in one-to-thx:e

aovmen vond with a thick stucco coating (a recent addition) and set on

random fividstone foundation. The gable roof, coversd with standing-se~m tin,

A 3 gavas and molded cornices at the front and rear, with plain cornices

ol ths gables. The structure originally had two exterior end chimnsys, but

2 south chimney and the cap of the large north chimney have disappearad.

ramaining chimney has deep single convex shoulders. The main facadz has
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two entrances, a center one and the one in the south bay, both with graunite
sills. The unequally sized windows, with brick header sills, have six-over-
six sash. Plain, thin architraves surround the door and window openingzs, and
flat arches surmount the second-story windows in the east elevation. The
floor joist bsams of the second story protrude from the main facads, possibly
once having extended as a porch roof. Ths structure has been completely
renovated on the interior. The hall-and-parlor plan now present is possibly
a retention of the original division of space. The north fireplace on the
first floor still exists and is very large with a segmental-arched opening.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Farmville Plantation, the home of the Chambers family who were among
the county's first settlers, includes an interssting early brick dwslling
and an impressive Federal house distinguished by its handsome brickwork
and well-executed interiors. Egpecially notable is the graceful spiral
stalr with "tulip" brackets, characteristic of the major Federal houses of

‘the Piedmont.

Hanry Chambers was the grandfather of Joseph Chambers, the builder of
the present Farmville Plantation house. A native of Pennsylvania, Honry
obtained land in Rowan County, North Carolina, by a grant of 6L0 acres
surveyed in 175l. According to a descendant's memoir, Henry Chambers's log
dwelling was still standing and in "fairly good condition" at the end of
the Civil War. Tombstone records indicate that Henry Chambers was —orn in
1707 and died in 1782. One of his nins children was a son, also naizd
Henry, born in 1751. Henry, the younger, did not inherit his fathe:'s
plantation house by the terms of the will, but was probably living on an
adjoining tract at the time of his father's death. TIn 1781 he had hought
from his father a 320-acre tract rectangular in shape, which was probably
a half of his fathsr's above-mentioned grant of 6L,0 acres, also laic off
as a ractangle. It dis also likely that he had taken possession of ihe
tract some yesars before the actual execution of the deed.

The younger Chambars, a succassful planter, increased his estaiz by
purchasse of several tracts from the McElwraith family whose pro:=ni
as a neighbor and contemporary of the first Henry Chambers. ne o: these
tracts included a two-story brick dwelling built probably by John Mo lwraith
irst settled there in 1751. This house, the smaller brick buil:ing at
T 2, is thought to be the oldsst brick dwelling in Iredell Co:nity.
L7900 Unilted States Census shows Henry Chambers to be the owner i nine
and the 1510 census records his owning sixteen slaves. By 1315
te was hold in trust, according to that year's tax list. for his
sng. David, Joseph, and Maxwell, and included nine negro slaves and 2,349
His will left "the plantation I now live on" to his son, Ma:z-rall
I ater a wealthy merchant prominent in the affairs of the Presbyteriun
chwrch and Davidson College), while to Joseph he willed several tracts
including "the land T bought from John McElwraith" containing 325 acres.
1% is more than likely upon this land that Joseph Chambers built the present
Parmviiio Plantation. In 1818, not long after his father's death, hu
jmouriod Margaret Brown. At this time also deeds show that he acquirad
juxlbensivo real estate from his brothers David and Maxwell, which probhably
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Cobiied most of the family lands. In one deed he is daescribed as '"me. thant."
= Lhat Joseph Chambers began building his plantation home, whi~h he
D vermrille, around 1818. By 1837 the estate comprised more than 2,600
41 dwonty-three negro slaves. At Joseph Chambers's death in 108, his
~mny Brown Chambers, inherited Farmville. In 1850 the plante'.ion
of 2,480 acres with 600 under cultivation and a slave populaiion of
Girhly-ea . A relative, writing in 1912 "as a matter of historical preservation
and if*mtv:t” described Farmville as it was in 1860:

Tha dwelling and out-buildings were in a magnificent oak grove sorz ten
or twelve acres in extent. . . . The view was through a broad and
beantiful avenue, as wide as the house was long, leading from ths front
gate at the house to the public road, and which was lined, shaded and
ornamented by a row of alternate sycamores and elms on sach side. . . »
This yard on its North, East and West sides was enclosed by handscme
out-buildings ‘and, between them, a strong brick wall nearly as high as
an ordinary man. . « . On the inside of this wall and along each side
of the walks leading to the several gates, and around the residencs
itself, were rows of Cedars.

f Although the relative antiquity of the following described bullding is
| not noted by the writer, current information suggests that it refers to the
MeElwralith homestead mentioned above, by now used as a kitchen for the main
houss .

About twenty feet from the foot of these steps was a large two story
brick building forming a part of the enclosure of the Eastern side of
the yard. The Northern of the two lower rooms of that building was the
kitchen, the Southern was a bedroom, often occupied by a resident
physician and, for this reason, was called 'The Office.' One of the
rooms upstairs was a weaving and lumber room, the other a store room
for flour, meal and other necessary articles.

Farmville remained the property of P. B. Chambers until 1898 when, at an
advanced age, he was unable to loock after it and therefore sold it. Tha house
had a succession of owners until 1960 when, on its way to becoming a ruin, it
was bought by Mr. T. Harry Gatton of Raleigh. Mr. Gatton, present chairman
of the Executive Board of the State Department of Archives and History., under-
took the extensive task of restoring the house. After making it habitible and
renewing its faded grandeur, Mr. Gatton sold Farmville to Dr. R. Meredith
Hall in 1970,
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